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Histary of the Episcopal Chureh in Puerto Rico

So far we have seen in very general terps the development of

the history of the Island since its discovery to its present situation.
Ecu we will sttempt to follow, also in @ very concise fashion, the develop-
ment of the history of the Episcopal Church in Puerto Rico from its founds-
tion, back in the second part of the nineteenth century, up to its present
st=te. . *

e can say that Christianity ceme to Puerto Rico with the first
settlers’ arcund the year of 15028. It was the policy of the Spanish Croun
fn Christienlize the natives aof the neswly discovered lands st the ssme time
that colonization was taking place. Unfortunately, as = general rule
this Christisnization came to be characterized by an imposition snd trans-
plantation of Western World forms and stendards (mesinly ths Spaniard's),
which have left deep marks in the charscter, culture and religion of the
Puerto Rican pecple and of our Latin Americsn brethren.

ARs has been mentioned in our survey of the history of the Island,
ths Spaniards extended its rule over Puerta Rico until the year of 1838,

It wes &3 & result of the Spanish-American War that the United States took
over Pusrto Rico from Spein extending thus, its sgvereignty over tha Island.
With this change of sovereignty, Puerto Rico csme to be opened to non-
Roman Cztholic missioners for the first time in its history. Consenant
with its politicel institution, the United States immediately started a
policy of religious toleration. However, prior to that date, in the year
of 1265 s sm=ll nuclesus of non-Roman Catholica had been begun in the city

of Ponce, locsted on the very South coast of the Island., This small

nuzlisus merks ths beginnings of whaet later on was the become our desr

rinity Church. Holy Trinity was startdd under specisl permissiaon



from the government, in order to meet the needs of the meny British West
ian migrants in the area of Ponce, A church building of iron and wood
construction wes shipped from Liverpopl, -England, in the year of 1873,
Thzt seme year, the Church wss opened for divine services (the Tirst time

that = nen-Roman Cathplic body held religious:services in the history of
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slaznd). ‘It wes subsequently consecrated the next year by the Bishop
of Antigua, the Rt. Rev. William u. Jacksun;

According to the records of Holy Trinity, the very sams year
of its consecrstion the civil suthorities ordered it 'to be closed. Neuér-
the lsss, thenks to the gocd suspices of Queen VUictoria of England befors
the Spanish Crown, permission to re=open the church wss soon secured. Yet
girong restirictions were imposed by the loczl suthorities; . the front doer
wzs to remain locked at 21l times: the church bells were not to be rTung
under any circumstances; no religious symbols nor signs wers to be displayed
cn thes cutside, snd no work wes to be carried.out among Puerteo Ricans.
But, in spite of these strong restrictions,. the work at Holy Trinity
continued to grow. At the arrival of the American troops in the year of
1852, tha bell at Holy Trinity was rung for the first time prdclaiming
the nsw religious freedaom. This bell remsins todasy "the Religigus Liberty
2118 of the Church in Puerto Rico. It has been enshrined in the cloister
wall of our presant Holy Trinity parish. .

The pianesr activity of the Churech of England in Pusrto Rico,
wes pot limited exclusively to the Toundation of Holy Trinity church -in
ancs. it wes =lso0 sxtendsd to Viegues, a very small island S miles off
=st cpast of Puerto Rico. Vieques hzs been aluays dependent both

golitically and economically from Puerto Rido. Work there uwes begun in
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1880 by Mr. Joseph N. Bean, & native from Bermuds, who felt
t=llsd to spresd the ministry of Christ to the meny British West Indians
dwelling in Viegues. His exemplary work lsd to the foundation of All
Szints Church at Isabel Ssgunds, the only estsblished city in the island
of Viegues, ) : - -
Thus, by the end of the Spanish-American War we find tuwo Anglican
churches established in Puerto Rico, With the :qgnge of sovereignty, the
Church of England trensfgrred jurisdiction of the Anglican churches in
IPuaztn Rico, over to the Protesitant Episcupél Church in thes United States.

Yery soon the new jurisdiction wss placed under the care of the Bishop of

Cnicago, who in turn zppointed the Rev. George B. Pratt, as thz Tirst

£

issioner to the pew Church. Father Pratt soon organized the church of

t. John the Beptist in San Juan, capital city of Puertoc Rico. ' This was
the mother church of our present cathedrsl which carries the same nzme.

, Thna Church in/Puesrto Rico recsived two official visits from
American Bishops during the years 1500-1501. Under the recommendstion

of these Bishops, a new missicner, The Rev. Jemss Haert \an Buren, was
sppointed, in order to succesd Fether Pratt, who had returned to the United
States the year befors. Through action of the Genaral Caonvention of 19201,
Fuerio Riepo was mede a Missionary District of the Episcopal Church. Ths
following year Father \len Buren was glacied as the First missionary gishop
of Puerto Rico. He travelled to the United States to be consecratad on

Ei. John the Beptist Day, 1902; at hls home parish in Massachusstts. The
nsscretion of Bishop Van Buren was g very significent event in the histozy

of our chureh in Puerto Rico, which for the first time came to heve her

.



e

During the 10 years of the episcopacy of Bishop Van Buren, the
Church in Puerto Rico was able to establish very strong fnutﬂ. His apostolate
was marked by a strang interest in Educatiﬂn,-sinna he felt this was
one of the most presssng needs in the Island. New work was begun under
him. A new church was bullt in order to meet the needs of the congregation
of 5t. John the Eapti;t. A new mission named St. Luke's was established
in the -section known as Puerto de Tierra in the vicinity of San Juan.
In Mayaguez the third largest city on th&'iﬁland, full time work was
arganized in the spring of 1505, giving birth to 5%t. Andrew's Church. A
school involving industrial training for boys and embroidery classes for

irls, was founded as part of the ministry of 5t. Andrew's. Tuwo years
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er, St. Luke's Huspitai in Ponce, was founded. Since its opening, S5t.
Luke's has been the most outstanding institution operated by the Church
in Puerto Rico. It has always been self-supporting, except for the cost
.of buildings. It is a general hospital with s specisl rehabilitation
program for veterans. As pE?t of its facilities it has 2 very excellent
Nursing School 5t. Luke's plays a very important role in the community
of Ponce and is making a tremendous contribution in terms of service and
witness of Christ,.

In April, 1912, Bishop han Buren wes forced to resign due to
poor heaith. At the General Convention of 1913, the Very Rev. Charles P.
Colmore, Dean aof tha Cathedral in Havana, Euhé, wes slected the second
missionary bishop of Puerto Rico. He was consecrated on Dee, 17, 1913,
=t All Saints Chapel, University of the South, Tennessee. Bishop Colmore
soon recognized the need for expending the work of the Church into rural
greee of the island since the population wes primarily rursl. Therefore,

during his episcopacy we see the foundation of thirteen small rural missions,zll
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of which sre still in existence today ministering to this simple and needy

Bishop Colmore also saw the need for developing a native clergy
in order to expand the work of the Church to new areas. Under his wise
lezdership a'small seminary was founded in Eqp Juan, ;n the year of 19148.
The first two men to ;umpleta their training, the Willsfafe broihers,
were ordained to the diaconate by Bishop Colmore on June 24, 1922, a special
date to be remembered.

In 1942, Bishop Colmore was forced by poor heslth to ask Tor a
cosdjuter bishop. Following his request the General Convention of 1943
2lected the Rev. Charles F. Boynton to this post. He had arrived in Puerio
Rico the previous year to take charge of S5t. Andrew's mission in Maysgusz.
He was consecrated at the Cathedral of St. John the Baptist in San Juan,

P. R., on January 2, 1944, Bishop Colmore retired in March, 1947, Bishop
Boynton being formally enthroned st the Cathedral on St. John the Baptist's
Day.

Before his retirement, Bishop Colmorzs saw the estsblishmant of
some important new work. For an example of this we have the beginning
of the work of the Community of the Transfiguration in December, 1945,
esteblishing a Convent on the grounds of S5t. Luke's Hospital. Their
primary purpose was that of witnessing to the Religious Life and doing
missionsry work in 5t. Luke's Hospital and the Ponce Churches, Theirs
has been s very significant and effective ministry not only in the area
cf Ponce, but also in the entire community of Puerto Rico.

Bishop Boynton's episcopacy saw the opaning of Colecio San Justo
in the yesr of 1948, & boarding school: for boys with an academic high school
program. It has been rated as one of our best prepesratory schools on the

Island. Attention has been drawn to S5t. Just recently through its excellent
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Stesl Band, which has toured part of the United States, under Church
sponsorship.

In 1950, Bishop Boynton resigned in order that he might accept
his glection to be suffragan bishop of the Diccess of New York. At the
meating of the House Bf Bishops in January, 1551, the Rev. A. Ervine Swift,
the Rector of Hnly Trinity Parish, Manila, the Philipines, wss elected
whe Tourth missionary bishop of Puerto Rico. H; was consecreted on May 3rd
of the ssme year, and enthroned at 5t. John's Cathedral on 5t. John the
Baptist Day, also of the same year (1551).

Bishop Swift's episcopate was a very fruitful one. His emphasis
was one of strengthening and consolidatdngthe work, and re-orisnting it
in line-with the rapidly.changing conditions in Puerto Rico. He felt that
although historically the Episcopal Church in P. R. had ministered to the
rursl areas, today it needs to expand its ministry fo urban areas, which
have developed Tantastically in the last two decades in keeping with the
tremendous industrial upsurge.

One of the most important steps taken by Bishop Swift to strengthen
the work was that of developing 8 native well-trained clergy. At first
czndidates were sent to different schools in the States. Fortunately,
with the opening of the Epliscopal Theological Seminary of the Caribbean,
in Carelina, P. R., in the year 1961, candidates can complete their trsin-
ing without need of going ebroad.

New work was also begun under Bishop Swift. In Ponce, the
Sisters of the Transfiguration added a center ! for underprivileged boys
ic their work. This center came to be baptized as nEt. Michael's House®,

A Tull-=time chaplain hes been added to the stsff. Social services as well
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s £ :iﬁtian witness of love, care and service, are the outstanding works
of 5t. Michael's. Approximately 150 boys and familles are helped through
thisz Center, the only institution of its kind in Pusrto Rice. A new
mission hzs been organized as a result of the work of St. Michael's in
the community. .

Besides St. Michael's Center, new work has also been started

in urban sreas. In the last & years, 4 new missions have been founded

in great urban centers in an effort to minister to these expanding areas.

In the 65 yesars of the Church's work in Puerto Rico it hes grown
not merely in tarms of numbers, but in maturity and responsibility. AT
the last General Convention of 1964, Bishop Bwift asked for the slsctian
of 2 native coadjutor bishop. He felt the time had come for the Church

in Pusrto Rico to have her own native bishop leading it. At the meeting
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T the House of Bishops (Oct., 19&84) the Very Rev. Francisco Reus Froylen,
iéan of the Cathedral of St. dohn the Baptist and a very desr son of the
I=sland was elected bishop goadjutor of Puerio Rico. He wes consecrated

on 8t. Andrew's Day (30th of November) off 1964. Very shortly afterwards,
Bishop Swift resigned his jurisdiction in order to become Aszistant Bishop
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Bishop of Pennsylvania. Bishop Reus was officielly enthroned on

Dec. &4, 1965, HBoth his consecratiocn and his enthronement were unforgetable
gvents in the life of our Chureh in Puerto Rico. DMNow that we are "on our
own feetf we look with confidence and trust for the continuous growth and
strengthening of our Chureh, both physically end spiritwally. The Church

iz fulfilling s special calling; that of ministering to & dynamic and
chenping =ocisty. Therefore if it is to survive end to provide an effective
ministry, it needs to adjust itself to this éhangir..; society and to get
involved in 3ll its chonges being an sctive end erfectivs agent of the

ministry of reconeciliation.



